
 

 
 
 
Burlington City Hall  
Council Chambers 
833 So. Spruce Street 
Burlington, WA 98233 
 

Skagit Transit 
Board Of Directors 

Agenda 

Regular Meeting
February 19, 2014 

1:00 p.m.

 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. CONSENT / ACTION ITEMS 
 

All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to each member of the Skagit Transit 
Board of Directors for reading and study, are considered to be routine, and will be enacted by one motion 
of the Board with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired, that item may be removed 
from Consent Action Items and placed on Regular Action Items by request. 
 
a) Approval of January Meeting Minutes ..................................................................................... Page 3-4 
b) Approval of Claims and Payroll 

January Payroll Direct Deposit and Checks #14861 -  #14916 .......................................... $527,053.10 
January Direct Federal withholding transfer ....................................................................... $116,237.29 
January Claims Checks #28915 - #29017 ........................................................................... $587,216.08 
 
 

6. FULL DISSCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

a) Monthly Budget Update Report .......................................................................... Page 5 & Attachments 
b) Award Security Guard Services Contract #14-001-F .................................................................. Page 6 

 
 

7. CITIZENS’ ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

8. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 



 
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS 

SKAGIT TRANSIT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Wednesday, January 15, 2014 
 
The Skagit Transit Board of Directors met in regular session in Burlington on Wednesday, January 15, 2014. 
Commissioner Kenneth Dahlstedt called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, 
Roll Call, and Introductions.   
 
Members Present:  Commissioners Kenneth Dahlstedt and Ron Wesen; Sheriff Will Reichardt Skagit 
County; Mayor Mike Anderson, City of Sedro Woolley; Mayor Steve Sexton and Councilperson Garnor 
Bensen, City of Burlington; Mayor Laurie Gere, City of Anacortes; Mayor Jill Boudreau and Councilperson 
Dale Ragan, City of Mount Vernon; and Debbie Gabriel, AFSCME Union President.   
 
 
Skagit Transit Representatives:  Dale O’Brien, Executive Director; Troy Fair, Manager of Operations; and 
Mary Lozeau, Clerk of Board. 
 
Members of the Public:  Cecile Lahti, Everett. 
 
 
I         Public Comment:   

 Cecile stated that she travels from Everett to Bellingham with a two year old child.  Cecile gave 
suggestions for traveling with a child on transit.  Designated seats for passengers with children.  A seat 
fastener to secure the child in the seat.  Dale O’Brien stated seat belts are not required in the Fixed Route 
vehicles.  Troy Fair stated that he is conducting research with other Washington State transit agencies to 
learn how they address similar concerns securing children.  Cecile noted she is not concerned about crash 
protection and more concerned with holding a child for two hours.   

 
II      Consent / Action Items: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes  

b) Approval of Claims and Payroll 
December Payroll Direct Deposits and Checks # 14789 - # 14827 ............... $    494,781.44 
December Direct federal withholding transfer ............................................  ...$    102,389.54 

                       December Checks # 28816 - # 28914 ........................................................... $    188,478.29 
 

Mayor Jill Boudreau moved to approve all Consent / Action items.  Mayor Steve Sexton 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
III     Full Discussion/Action Items: 
 

a) Monthly Budget Update 
 
Dale O’Brien reported Skagit Transit received $783,257 sales tax revenue in the month of December.  
This compares with $754,764 in December of 2012.  This is a 3.8 % or $28,493 increase over last 
year with a year to date increase of the 7.2%, or $634,135.  Skagit Transit also received $261,802 
federal and state grant reimbursements. 

Expenses included Technical Services for website upgrade.  Capital expenditures included Alger 
Park & Ride construction. Dale noted fuel is within budget and all other expenses were as expected.   

Mayor Jill Boudreau moved to approve the Monthly Budget Update.   Commissioner Ron 
Wesen seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
 

b) Election of Chair and  Vice Chair 
 

Commissioner Dahlstedt opened the nominations for Chair and Vice Chair. 

Mayor Steve Sexton made a motion to nominate Mayor Laurie Gere for Chair.  Mayor Gere 
declined and nominated Mayor Jill Boudreau.  Mayor Boudreau accepted the nomination.  
Commissioner Ron Wesen seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   



Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
January 15, 2014 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                       Board of Directors Meeting Minutes January 15, 2014 
 
 

 

 

Mayor Mike Anderson made a motion to nominate Mayor Steve Sexton for Vice Chair.  Mayor 
Sexton accepted the nomination.  Mayor Jill Boudreau seconded the nomination.  The motions 
passed unanimously.   

 
IV Citizens’ Advisory Committee Report 
 

Troy Fair informed the Board he attended the last Citizens’ Advisory Committee meeting.  Troy stated two 
new members from Community Action joined the committee.  Troy reported the major topic was activities 
for 2014.  The committee discussed their commitment to participate in the Very Berry Days Parade and 
the Logger Day Parade. 
 

V Information Items: 
 
 
 
VI        Unfinished Business: 

 
.   

 
 

VII       New Business: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Kenneth Dahlstedt adjourned the meeting at 1:17 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
   
 Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Chair 
 Skagit Transit Board of Directors 

Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Mary Lozeau, Clerk of Skagit Transit 



Skagit Transit Board Meeting 
                                                        February 19, 2014 

SKAGIT TRANSIT 
 
TO:  Skagit Transit Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Motoko Pleasant, Manager of Finance and Administration 
 

SUBJECT: Budget Update for January 2014 
 

 
INFORMATION: 

 

The monthly budget reports are presented for your review. Items of interest are: 
 

Revenues: 
 
Skagit Transit received $708,400 sales tax revenue in the month of January.  This compares 
with $ 724,799 in January of 2013.  This is a 2.3% or $16,399 decrease over last year with 
a year to date decrease of the same.    
 
Expenses:  

 
 Professional Service – Cook Road Realighment Project with City of Sedro 

Woolley 
 Revenue Vehicle Parts/Supplies 

 
 Fuels  Currently within budget. 
 

All other expenses were as expected. 
 

The Reserve Accounts currently are: 
 

           January 2014                   January 2013 
 
Operating    $2,090,495                             $2,087,554  
Facilities         400,000       400,000 
Capital Replacement        3,850,818    3,844,839 
Non-Designated     2,161,891    2,158,802 
  
Total Reserves =                          $ 8,503,204            $ 8,491,195 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Staff recommends the Board approve the monthly budget reports. 
 

BUDGET IMPACT:   
 

None. 



Skagit Transit Board Meeting 
February 19, 2014 

 

SKAGIT TRANSIT 
 
TO:  Skagit Transit Board of Directors 

FROM: Ben Haigh, Maintenance and Facilities Manager 

SUBJECT: Award Security Guard Services Contract #14-001-F 

 
INFORMATION: 

 
Skagit Transit’s existing Security Guard Services Contract #08-017-F expires February 28, 2014 with 
no renewal options remaining.  Request For Proposals (RFP) #14-001-F was published January 3, 
2014 and advertised in Skagit Valley Herald’s legal section.  Public notices were also posted at the 
MOA, Skagit Station, and on Skagit Transit’s website.  Solicitation notices were sent to all seventeen 
security guard companies on the Vendor Bid List. 
 
Representatives from nine security companies attended the non-mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference 
held at Skagit Station on January 17, 2014 and nine companies were placed on the Planholders’ List.  
Of these Planholders, one submitted a No Bid Notice and four used the Public Disclosure Request 
process to receive information on the existing contract.  One Addendum was issued to answer 
questions from prospective Proposers and revise the pricing sections of the RFP.  Six proposals were 
received by the deadline specified in the RFP; however, one (Transworld Security Services) was 
rejected as non-responsive for failure to comply with and adhere to the requirements of the RFP. 
 
A three-member Evaluation Committee met on 2/6/14 to evaluate and score five responsive 
proposals.  Committee Members were:  Ben Haigh, Maintenance and Facilities Manager (Project 
Manager), Troy Fair, Operations Manager, and Robert Gummere, Operations Supervisor.  Committee 
final scores determined that the top three highest scoring Proposers selected for 
interviews/presentations were:  Olympic Security Services, Inc., G4S Security Solutions (USA), Inc., 
and Puget Sound Security, Inc. 

 Olympic Security 239 Parker Corp. Services (Pacific Security)   208 

 G4S Security 232 Securitas Security Services, Inc.          189 

 Puget Sound Security 213 
 
Prior to interviews held on 2/10/14 at the MOA, Committee Member Troy Fair was replaced by 
Aggie Juarez, Facilities Supervisor.  The Committee evaluated the top three candidates using different 
criteria.  Out of a possible 300 total points per Proposer, post-interview scores were:  G4S Security – 
254 points / Olympic Security – 232 points / Puget Sound Security – 217 points. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Skagit Transit staff recommends that the Security Guard Services Contract #14-001-F be awarded to 
G4S Security Solutions (USA), Inc. 

 
BUDGET IMPACT:   

2014 Approved Budget for Security Guard Services  $90,000.00 

Average Annual Cost, Current Contract   $85,494.00 

YTD Cost 5th Year,  Current Contract    $74,896.00 

 
Prepared by Rhonda Wahlgren 




































